
Response to the Pre-bid queries on the RFP Document for operation of MHU 
in PPP mode (Arogya Plus), Advt. No. 02/25 and PHC(N) Management 

Project against the Advt. No. 03/25, dt. 13.01.2025 
***** 

 
The queries raised by the prospective bidders were discussed in detail and the response to 

pre-bid queries as decided by the Committee are as follows: 

 
A. Response to the Pre-bid queries on MHU in PPP mode (Arogya Plus) (Advt. No. 

02/25):  
 

RFP 
Clause 

No. 

Queries raised by the 
Prospective Bidders 

Clarification /Amendment in response 
to Pre-bid queries 

Section 3, 
Clause - 
3.1 (d) 

To share the components that is 
budgeted under the project 
MHU in PPP mode (Arogya 
Plus) for the FY 2023-24.  

Amendment: 
The detailed component wise annual 
budget for the Arogya Plus Project for the 
FY 2023-24 is at Annexure-A of the 
revised RFP, uploaded in the NHM 
Odisha website and online NGO 
Application System portal. 

Section 3, 
Clause - 
3.2 

It is stated in the Eligibility 
Criteria that Medical 
Colleges/Hospitals are eligible to 
apply. Whether they have done 
work for government/private 
sectors. Kindly confirm if 
hospitals also need to be 
registered as Section 8/25 
companies or normal registration 
will suffice for qualification. 

No change: 
Clarification: As per the eligibility criteria 
mentioned under the clause, Medical 
Colleges/Hospitals are not allowed to 
participate in the tender for the project.  

Section 6 

Since this is a fixed cost tender 
kindly clarify detailed scope of 
work that will be the 
responsibility of the service 
provider? 

No change:  
Clarification: Detailed service description 
and responsibility of the Agency/service 
provider for the project is mentioned in the 
Section-6 of the RFP document.  

Section 6, Kindly clarify if medicines and No change:  



RFP 
Clause 

No. 

Queries raised by the 
Prospective Bidders 

Clarification /Amendment in response 
to Pre-bid queries 

Clause - 
6.2 (h) 

consumables have to be 
provided by the service 
provider? 

 

Clarification: Under the project, medicine 
& other consumable cost @ Rs. 24,000/- 
per month has been provisioned in the 
annual project cost. However, free supply 
of drugs may be issued to the MHU by the 
respective District as per situational need, if 
required, 

Nil 

Kindly clarify if all the necessary 
Capex items – ICT, lab 
equipment, furniture – etc will 
be provided by the 
ZSS/CDMO? 

 

No change:  
Clarification: Making provision of required 
equipment, furniture etc for the MHU to 
conduct health screening during camps is 
the responsibility of the Agency and the 
cost may be met from the administrative 
cost of the NGO under annual budget of 
the project.   

Nil 

Kindly clarify if vehicle has to be 
rented or procured for the 
purpose of fulfilling the 
program? 

 

No change:  
Clarification: The Agency/service provider 
has to decide the mode of engagement of 
the vehicle to be used for MHU. However, 
under the annual budget for the project, 
monthly hiring and fuel cost has only been 
provisioned as fixed cost.  

Nil 

Kindly clarify if fuel bills and 
maintenance will have to be 
borne by the service provider or 
will be reimbursed by the 
ZSS/CDMO on actual ? 

 

No change:  
Clarification: Under the annual budget for 
the project, monthly fuel cost @ Rs. 
15,000/- has been provisioned as fixed 
cost. Maintenance of the vehicle is the 
responsibility of the Agency/service 
provider for which there is no separate cost 
provisioned.  

Section 6, 
Clause - 
6.4 

Kindly clarify if part-time 
staff/contractual staff can be 
engaged for fulfilling the needs 
of the program ? 

No change:  
Clarification: Categories of manpower are 
to be engaged by the Agency/service 
provider under the project is mentioned at 



RFP 
Clause 

No. 

Queries raised by the 
Prospective Bidders 

Clarification /Amendment in response 
to Pre-bid queries 

 
Section 6, Clause No. 6.4 of the RFP 
document.  

Nil 

Kindly clarify if IEC material, 
aids, vaccines and travel bills will 
be given by the service provider 
or by ZSS/CDMO 

 

No change:  
Clarification: Prototype of IEC materials 
will be provided by the Govt. from time to 
time. In care of any vaccination 
programme, Govt. will facilitate and 
support. However, there is no provision of 
travel bill settlement under the project cost.  

Section 2 

Schedule of online proposal 
submission: 4 Project locations 
of Malkangiri Districts. 

Amendment: 
In case of project locations for Malkangiri 
District, the locations are corrected as 
K.Gumma-1 project, Khairput-1 project, 
Mathili- 1 project and Podia-1 project in 
the revised RFP, uploaded in the NHM 
Odisha website and online NGO 
Application System portal. 

 

 

 

 

B. Response to the Pre-bid queries on PHC(N) Management Project (Advt. No. 03/25):  
 

RFP 
Clause 

No. 

Queries raised by the 
Prospective Bidders 

Clarification /Amendment in response to 
Pre-bid queries 

Section 3, 
Clause - 
3.1 (d) 

To share the components that 
is budgeted under the PHC(N) 
Management project for the FY 
2023-24.  

Amendment: 
The detailed component wise annual budget for 
the PHC(N) Management Project for the FY 
2023-24 is at Annexure-A of the revised RFP, 
uploaded in the NHM Odisha website and 
online NGO Application System portal. 

Section 3, 
Clause - 
3.2 

It is stated in the Eligibility 
Criteria that Medical 
Colleges/Hospitals are eligible 

No change: 
Clarification: Detailed eligibility criteria for the 
Medical Colleges/Hospitals run under 



RFP 
Clause 

No. 

Queries raised by the 
Prospective Bidders 

Clarification /Amendment in response to 
Pre-bid queries 

to apply. Whether they have 
done work for 
government/private sectors. 
Kindly confirm if hospitals also 
need to be registered as Section 
8/25 companies or normal 
registration will suffice for 
qualification. 

Govt./Public Sector/Private Sector interested 
for applying for the project has been mentioned 
in the Section 3 under Clause No. 3.2 of the 
RFP document. 

Section 6 

Since this is a fixed cost tender 
kindly clarify detailed scope of 
work that will be the 
responsibility of the service 
provider? 

No change: 
Clarification: Detailed service description and 
responsibility of the Agency/service provider for 
the project is mentioned in the Section-6 of the 
RFP document.  

Section 6, 
Clause - 
6.2 (h) 

Kindly clarify if medicines and 
consumables have to be 
provided by the service 
provider? 

 

No change: 
Clarification: Supply of drugs, lab reagents and 
other consumables will be provided to the 
PHC(N) by the respective District Health 
Administration as per the prescribed Essential 
Drug List (EDL) of Government. 

Nil 

Kindly clarify if all the 
necessary Capex items – ICT, 
lab equipment, furniture – etc 
will be provided by the 
ZSS/CDMO ? 

 

No change: 
Clarification: Existing medical equipments and 
assets of the PHC(N) shall be handed over to 
the Agency/service provider ‘as is where is 
basis’. However, Govt. may supply required 
equipments/instruments as per need from time 
to time. 

Section 6, 
Clause - 
6.4 

Kindly clarify if part-time 
staff/contractual staff can be 
engaged for fulfilling the needs 
of the program ? 

 

No change: 
Clarification: Categories of manpower are to be 
engaged by the Agency/service provider under 
the project is mentioned at Section 6, Clause No. 
6.4 of the RFP document.  



RFP 
Clause 

No. 

Queries raised by the 
Prospective Bidders 

Clarification /Amendment in response to 
Pre-bid queries 

Nil 

Kindly clarify if IEC material, 
aids, vaccines and travel bills 
will be given by the service 
provider or by ZSS/CDMO. 

No change: 
Clarification: Prototype of IEC materials will be 
provided by the Govt. from time to time. In care 
of any vaccination programme, Govt. will 
facilitate and support. However, there is no 
provision of travel bill settlement under the 
project cost.  

Section 9, 
T1 Form 

Annual Turnover Statement: 
Annual Turnover of last three 
Financial Years. 

Amendment: 
As there is a typo error in the last three years 
mentioned in the T1 form of the RFP 
document, it should be read as Annual 
Turnover of last three Financial Years i.e 
2021-22, 2022-23 and 2023-24 as per the 
revised RFP, uploaded in the NHM Odisha 
website and online NGO Application System 
portal. 

Section 9, 
T2 Form 

Fixed Assets Statement: Fixed 
Assets of last Financial Year 

Amendment: 
As there is a typo error in the last Financial Year 
in the T2 form, it should be read as Fixed 
Assets of last Financial Year i.e 2023-24 as 
per the revised RFP, uploaded in the NHM 
Odisha website and online NGO Application 
System portal. 

 

N.B: The amendments/ clarifications mentioned above are to be treated as 
amendments/ clarifications to the terms & conditions of the respective tender 
advertisement numbers. All other terms & conditions as mentioned in the tender 
document remain unchanged.  

 

 

Sd/- 
Mission Director 
NHM, Odisha 


